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こちらの二次元コードから
各ページのモデルダイアログと

1～ 6の語句を差し替えてできあがったダイアログの音声を聴くことができます。
正しく書けたものを音読練習するときに聴いて

どんどん真似をしてくださいね。
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2	 A	:	 Did you get a call from Judy
			   yesterday?
	 B	:	 No, I didn’t.  I got an e-mail.

4	 A	:	 Did your father come home early
			   yesterday?
	 B	:	 No, he didn’t.  He came home at
			   eleven.

6	 A	:	 Did you read your textbooks
			   yesterday?
	 B	:	 No, we didn’t.  We read comic
			   books.

1	 A	:	 Did you take a bath yesterday?
	 B	:	 No, I didn’t.  I took a shower.

3	 A	:	 Did your sister make spaghetti
			   yesterday?
	 B	:	 No, she didn’t.  She made pizza.

5	 A	:	 Did your parents buy beer
			   yesterday?
	 B	:	 No, they didn’t.  They bought wine.

Talk Boost

Did you go to juku yesterday?1

 各問題の3行目にある　　の部分には，2行目で使った動詞の過去形を使いましょう。ヒントは  に！
 Did youは「ディデュ」とつなげて発音します。「ディヂュ」と発音する人も多いです。Yes/No疑問文なので文末は
上昇調（上げて読む）で読みます。

 5 のboughtは，口を2cmぐらい開けて「オー」と発音します。6 の readの過去形は redと同じ発音です。
 3問（英語・日本語）を30秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Did you go to juku yesterday?
B : No, I didn’t.  I went to a movie.

 you
 take a bath
 　 a shower

1

 your sister
 make spaghetti
 　 pizza

3

 your parents
 buy beer
 　 wine

5

 you
 get a call from Judy
 　 an e-mail

2

 your father
 come home early
 　 home at eleven

4

 you
 read your textbooks
 　 comic books

6

 made bought read took got came  

a call from Judy

ghetti
ther

 come home early

rents
 your textbooks

 comic books
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Example 1
I got up at seven fifteen.
Then I washed my face.
I had toast with jam for breakfast.
I left home for school at eight.
I went to juku after school.
I got home at eight thirty.
I listened to music after dinner.
I went to bed at ten thirty.

Example 3
I got up at six forty-five.
Then I changed clothes.
I had grilled fish for breakfast.
I left home for school at eight twenty.
I went to the library after school.
I got home at six.
I took a bath after dinner.
I went to bed at nine thirty.

Example 2
I got up at six.
Then I went to the bathroom.
I had rice and miso soup for breakfast.
I left home for school at seven thirty-five.
I went to the club activity after school.
I got home at seven thirty.
I did my homework after dinner.
I went to bed at ten.

Example 4
I got up at seven.
Then I turned on the TV.
It was interesting.
I had ham and eggs for breakfast.
I left home for school at seven fifty.
I talked with my friend after school.
I had a very good time.
I got home at six forty-five.
I read comic books after dinner.
It was funny.
I went to bed at eleven.
I enjoyed myself today.

Talk Boost

2

3

4

1

2 Writing a Journal
[ Basic ]

 まず日記を書いて先生のチェックを受け，正しくなった英文を音読しましょう。音読する際は，強弱，高低，イントネー
ション，区切りなどに気をつけてください。何度も音読して口が覚えたら，Read & Look Up（1文ずつ暗記し，覚
えたと思ったら上を向いて文字を見ずに暗唱する活動）をしてください。

 8文（英語のみ）を30秒以内に言えたら合格です。

 上のモデル文の　　部を自分なりにかえて，英文日記を書いてみよう。
 下の表現，右ページ，p. 33を活用したり，先生に聞いたりしてもOK!
 右ページの表現を途中に付け足していくと，日記がさらに豊かになるよ。

 I got up at six forty-five.
 Then I brushed my teeth.
 I had bread, salad, and coffee for breakfast.
 I left home for school at seven fifty.
 I practiced tennis after school.
 I got home at seven.
 I watched TV after dinner.
 I went to bed at eleven forty.

1

2

3

4

change clothes

ham and eggs

go to the club activity

do my homework

go to the bathroom

rice and miso soup

go to the library

listen to music

turn on the TV

grilled fish

go to juku

read comic books

wash my face

toast with jam

talk with my friend

take a bath
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2	 A	:	 Where were you last night?
	 B	:	 I was in a movie theater.
	 A	:	 What were you doing there?
	 B	:	 I was sleeping.

4	 A	:	 Where was Mr. Parker last night?
	 B	:	 He was downtown.
	 A	:	 What was he doing there?
	 B	:	 He was eating dinner.

6	 A	:	 Where were you and your brother
			   last night?
	 B	:	 We were in the living room.
	 A	:	 What were you doing there?
	 B	:	 We were arguing.

1	 A	:	 Where were you last night?
	 B	:	 I was in my room.
	 A	:	 What were you doing there?
	 B	:	 I was using the internet.

3	 A	:	 Where was your mother
			   last night?
	 B	:	 She was in the Japanese Culture
			   Center.
	 A	:	 What was she doing there?
	 B	:	 She was learning Japanese.

5	 A	:	 Where were David and Mark
			   last night?
	 B	:	 They were in the park.
	 A	:	 What were they doing there?
	 B	:	 They were playing basketball.

Talk Boost

What were you doing there?3

 thereは「そこ」という意味です。what（何）/ that（それ），where（どこ）/ there（そこ），when（いつ）/ then（そ
のとき）の3組の共通点がわかりますか？ 

 2 の theaterは the･a･terと分けて読みましょう。3 の learningは，習って覚え，身につけつつあることを意味して
います。

 2問（英語・日本語）を40秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Where were you last night?
B : I was in a restaurant.
A : What were you doing there?
B : I was working part-time.

 you
 in my room
 use the internet

1

 your mother
 in the Japanese Culture Center
 learn Japanese

3

 David and Mark
 in the park
 play basketball

5

 you
 in a movie theater
 sleep

2

 Mr. Parker
 downtown
 eat dinner

4

 you and your brother
 in the living room
 argue

6

nd Mark
ark
sketball

rker
owntown

 your brother
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2	 A	:	 I will do the summer homework
			   tomorrow.  Will you?
	 B	:	 No, I won’t.  But Becky will.

4	 A	:	 I will buy a new smartphone
			   tomorrow.  Will you?
	 B	:	 No, I won’t.  But Ms. Evans will.

6	 A	:	 I will do volunteer work tomorrow.
			   Will you?
	 B	:	 No, I won’t.  But some of my
			   classmates will.

1	 A	:	 I will go to the sea tomorrow.
			   Will you?
	 B	:	 No, I won’t.  But Chris will.

3	 A	:	 I will watch the World Cup
			   tomorrow.  Will you?
	 B	:	 No, I won’t.  But my brother will.

5	 A	:	 I will stay up all night tomorrow.
			   Will you?
	 B	:	 No, I won’t.  But Bob and George
			   will.

Talk Boost

I will go to Jimmy’s concert
tomorrow.4

 助動詞willは，主語が Iだと「～するつもりだ」という意思や「～するぞ」という決意を表します。willは名詞では「意
思」や「遺言」という意味を持っています。

 Will you?は文字通り「あなたの意思は？」という意味になります。
 won’tはwill notの短縮形で，口を1cmしか開けず，「ウ」の音を入れて「ウォウン t」と発音します。
 2問（英語・日本語）を40秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : I will go to Jimmy’s concert tomorrow.  Will you?
B : No, I won’t.
  But Tom will (go to Jimmy’s concert).

 go to the sea
 Chris

 watch the World Cup
 my brother

 stay up all night
 Bob and George

 do the summer homework
 Becky

 buy a new smartphone
 Ms. Evans

 do volunteer work
 some of my classmates

1

3

5

2

4

6

 go to the sea

ll night

 tomorrow.  Will you?

 new smartphone

o volunteer work
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2	 A	:	 How is the weather in Paris?
	 B	:	 It’s snowy.
	 A	:	 How will the weather be in the
			   afternoon?
	 B	:	 It will be sunny.

4	 A	:	 How is the weather in Bangkok?
	 B	:	 It’s cloudy.
	 A	:	 How will the weather be in the
			   afternoon?
	 B	:	 It will be rainy.

6	 A	:	 How is the weather in Melbourne?
	 B	:	 It’s snowy.
	 A	:	 How will the weather be in the
			   afternoon?
	 B	:	 It will be cloudy.

1	 A	:	 How is the weather in San
			   Francisco?
	 B	:	 It’s sunny.
	 A	:	 How will the weather be in the
			   afternoon?
	 B	:	 It will be cloudy.

3	 A	:	 How is the weather in Moscow?
	 B	:	 It’s rainy.
	 A	:	 How will the weather be in the
			   afternoon?
	 B	:	 It will be snowy.

5	 A	:	 How is the weather in Buenos
			   Aires?
	 B	:	 It’s rainy.
	 A	:	 How will the weather be in the
			   afternoon?
	 B	:	 It will be sunny.

Talk Boost

How will the weather be?5

 語尾のyには「～の性質の」という意味があり，sunnyは太陽の性質がある=晴れた，という意味です。cloudy，
rainy，snowyも同様ですし，lucky，easyなどもその仲間です。

 uは基本的な読み方が「ア」，名前読みが「ユー」ですが，連続する子
し
音
いん
の直前は基本読みですので，nが重ねられて

います。sunyだと「スューニ」とも読めるのです。
 2問（英語・日本語）を40秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : How is the weather in Tokyo?
B : It’s sunny.
A : How will the weather be in the afternoon?
B : It will be rainy.

 San Francisco

 

1

 Moscow

 

3

 Buenos Aires

 

5

 Paris

 

2

 Bangkok

 

4

 Melbourne

 

6
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2	 A	:	 What is Pattie going to do
			   on her trip?
	 B	:	 She’s going to buy a purse.
			   She’s not going to buy a wallet
			   this time.

4	 A	:	 What are you going to do on
			   your trip?
	 B	:	 We’re going to wear T-shirts and 
			   jeans.	  We’re not going to wear 
			   blouses and skirts this time.

6	 A	:	 What are Eric and Sally going to
			   do on their trip?
	 B	:	 They’re going to see some musicals.
			   They’re not going to see
			   any football games this time.

1	 A	:	 What is Mr. Murakami going to
			   do on his trip?
	 B	:	 He’s going to write a short story.
			   He’s not going to write a novel
			   this time.

3	 A	:	 What are you going to do
			   on your trip?
	 B	:	 I’m going to eat local food.
			   I’m not going to eat fast food
			   this time.

5	 A	:	 What are you and Matt going to
			   do on your trip?
	 B	:	 We’re going to take photos of 
			   plants and flowers.
			   We’re not going to take a lot of
			   selfies this time.

Talk Boost

What is Lisa going to do
on her trip?6

 be going to ~の直後には，場所，イベント，行動がきます。going to go hikingならば「ハイキングに行くこと
に対して（to go hiking）準備も時間も進んでいる（going）」という意味で，be going to ~はすでに予定していた
未来の行動を表します。

 She’s notとShe isn’tでは前者のほうが否定のニュアンスが強く，notは強調して読みます。
 2問（英語・日本語）を50秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : What is Lisa going to do on her trip?
B : She’s going to go hiking.
  She’s not going to go swimming
  this time.

 Mr. Murakami
 write
 a short story
 a novel

 you
 eat
 local food
 fast food

 you and Matt
 take
 photos of plants and flowers
 a lot of selfies

 Pattie
 buy
 a purse
 a wallet

 you
 wear
 T-shirts and jeans
 blouses and skirts

 Eric and Sally
 see
 some musicals
 any football games

1

3

5

2

4

6

mi

 short story

and jeans

 Matt  Sally

 some musicals
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2	 A	:	 Who uses this computer?
	 B	:	 I do.

4	 A	:	 Who took these pictures?
	 B	:	 My brother did.

6	 A	:	 Who can speak Spanish?
	 B	:	 This woman can.

1	 A	:	 Who sings well?
	 B	:	 Michael does.

3	 A	:	 Who acts in that film?
	 B	:	 Alex and Jennifer do.

5	 A	:	 Who is going to cook dinner
			   tonight?
	 B	:	 We are.

Talk Boost

Who studies English hard?7

 主語のWhoやWhatは単数扱いします。Who studies English hard?という問いに対しては，ロング（最も長い
答え）がKen studies English hard.で，クール（主語 + be動詞 /助動詞）がKen does.で，ショート（最も短い
答え）がKen.となります。ここではクールの答え方を練習しましょう。

 Michaelの chは schoolと同じく「ク」，aeは発音しません。
 3問（英語・日本語）を30秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Who studies English hard?
B : Ken does.

 sings well
 Michael

1

 acts in that film
 Alex and Jennifer

3

 is going to cook dinner tonight
 we

5

 uses this computer
 I

2

 took these pictures
 my brother

4

 can speak Spanish
 this woman

6

 sings well  uses this computer

 took these pictures
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Example 1
A :	 How many lions are (there) in the zoo?
B :	 There are two lions.

Example 2
A :	 How many tigers are (there) in the zoo?
B :	 There are two tigers.

Example 3
A :	 How many koalas are (there) in the zoo?
B :	 There are three koalas.

Example 4
A :	 How many pandas are (there) in the zoo?
B :	 There are three pandas.

Example 5
A :	 How many monkeys are (there) in the zoo?
B :	 There are five monkeys.

Example 6
A :	 How many penguins are (there) in the zoo?
B :	 There are four penguins.

Example 7
A :	 How many kangaroos are (there) in the zoo?
B :	 There are four kangaroos.

Example 8
A :	 How many elephants are (there) in the zoo?
B :	 There are two elephants.

Example 9
A :	 How many giraffes are (there) in the zoo?
B :	 There is one giraffe.

Talk Boost

 動物園に動物がいくついるかを当てよう。
 まず，下の動物園の絵を2分間じっと見て，9種類の動物がいくついるか覚えよう。

 　lion / tiger / koala / panda / monkey
　penguin / kangaroo / elephant / giraffe

 友達とペアになり，本を閉じていくつ当てられるかを勝負しよう。
 最後はペアで先生のところに行って，交互にHow many ~s are (there) in the zoo? という質問
をし，どんな動物がいくつずついるかを30秒以内に言い切ろう。

How many zebras are (there) in
the zoo?   There is one zebra.8

 be動詞には「いる，ある，置いてある，入っている，行っている，来ている」という意味があります。the，this，
that，these，those，my，your，Taro’sなど，物や人を特定する言葉がつく場合や固有名詞，代名詞が主語の
場合〈主語 + be動詞〉で文を始めますが，初登場の主語で特定する言葉がない場合，〈There be動詞+主語〉で文
を始めます。

 9種類（英語のみ）を30秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : How many zebras are (there) in the zoo?
B : There is one zebra.

re (there) in the zoo?
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Example 1 
There was a photo studio fifty years ago.
There weren’t any convenience stores fifty years ago.

Example 2 
There was a barber shop fifty years ago.
There weren’t any tall buildings fifty years ago.

Example 3 
There were some rice fields fifty years ago.
There weren’t any parks fifty years ago.

Example 4 
There was a grocery store fifty years ago.
There wasn’t a large shopping mall fifty years ago.

Talk Boost

 下の写真は，ある町の「50年前」と「今」を写したものです。50年前にあったものと50年前にな
かったものを，それぞれノートに英語で書こう。

Spot the Differences9

 Part 8 のようにHow many ~sと数を聞かれた場合は，1つのときはoneを使って答えますが，ふつうに「～が1
つある」というときはaを使います。インタビューテストでは，There was a ~[were ~s] fifty years ago.や
There wasn’t a ~[weren’t any ~s] fifty years ago.を使って，50年前に何があり何がなかったかを表してく
ださい。weren’t anyは「1つもなかった」という場合に使います。

 8文（英語のみ）を30秒以内に言えたら合格です。

There was a fish shop fifty years ago.
There weren’t any restaurants fifty years ago.

rice field school

school

barber shopfish shop

convenience store

convenience store

park restaurant

restaurant large shopping malltall building

river

river

photo studiogrocery store
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2	 A	:	 Can you buy me French fries?
	 B	:	 All right.  What do you want to
			   drink?
	 A	:	 I want orange juice.

4	 A	:	 Can you tell us an interesting story?
	 B	:	 All right.  But it’s a long, long story.
			   Are you ready?
	 A	:	 Yes, of course.	

6	 A	:	 Can you give me your phone
			   number?
	 B	:	 No way!  Who are you?
	 A	:	 I’m sorry.

1	 A	:	 Can you show me the map?
	 B	:	 Sure.  But it’s a little small.
			   Is that OK?
	 A	:	 Yes.  No problem.

3	 A	:	 Can you teach us Okinawan
			   language?
	 B	:	 Sure.  Then, repeat after me.
	 A	:	 OK.	

5	 A	:	 Can you send my girlfriend
			   these flowers?
	 B	:	 Sure.  A birthday present for her?
	 A	:	 Yeah, that’s right.

Talk Boost

Can you give me a banana?10

 Can you ~?は「～してくれる可能性ある？」=「～してくれますか？」という意味で，依頼の表現です。肯定の度合
いはAll right.➡Sure.➡Yes, of course.の順で強くなります。No way!は否定です。これらのうちいずれかを
選び，さらにモデルダイアログの　　部に自分なりの「ひとこと」を加えて，楽しい対話文を完成させましょう。

 2問（英語・日本語）を40秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Can you give me a banana?
B : Yes, of course. / Sure. / All right. / No way!
  But it’s not ripe.  Is that OK?
A : Yes.  No problem.

 show
 me
 the map

 teach
 us
 Okinawan language

 send
 my girlfriend
 these flowers

 buy
 me
 French fries

 tell
 us
 an interesting story

 give
 me
 your phone number

1

3

5

2

4

6

 my girlfriend
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2	 A	:	 This curry tasted okay three days
			    ago.
	 B	:	 Yes.  But it tastes great today.

4	 A	:	 Ms. Robert’s Japanese sounded
			   unnatural last year.
	 B	:	 Yes.  But it sounds natural now.

6	 A	:	 These towels felt soft at first.
	 B	:	 Yes.  But they feel rough now.

1	 A	:	 Mom looked tired yesterday.
	 B	:	 Yes.  But she looks fine today.

3	 A	:	 This soup smelled good
			   the day before yesterday.
	 B	:	 Yes.  But it smells bad today.

5	 A	:	 His idea seemed strange
			   twenty years ago.
	 B	:	 Yes.  But it seems right now.

Talk Boost

She looks happy today.11

 It is good.と断定はできないけれど，少なくともgoodに「見える（視覚）」という場合は It looks good.，goodに
「聞こえる（聴覚）」場合 It sounds good.，goodな「味がする（味覚）」場合 It tastes good.，goodな「においが
する（嗅

きゅう
覚
かく
）」場合 It smells good.，goodな触り心地の場合 It feels good.です。seemは「実際に見聞きしてみ

ると～に思える」という意味です。
 2問（英語・日本語）を30秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Ruth looked sad yesterday.
B : Yes.  But she looks happy today.

 Mom
 look
 tired / yesterday
 fine / today

1

 this soup
 smell
 good / the day before yesterday
 bad / today

3

 his idea
 seem
 strange / twenty years ago
 right / now

5

 this curry
 taste
 okay / three days ago
 great / today

2

 Ms. Robert’s Japanese
 sound 
 unnatural / last year
 natural / now

4

 these towels
 feel
 soft / at first
 rough / now

6

 / yesterda

a

 this curry

y / three days ago

 Ms. Robert’s Japanese
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2	 A	:	 Did all of them become doctors?
	 B	:	 No.  But one of them became
			   a doctor.

4	 A	:	 Did all of you become office workers?
	 B	:	 No.  But most of us became office
			   workers.

6	 A	:	 Did all of the boys become pro soccer
			   players?
	 B	:	 No.  But half of them became
			   pro soccer players.

1	 A	:	 Did all of them become musicians?
	 B	:	 No.  But two of them became
			   musicians.

3	 A	:	 Did all of you become cooks?
	 B	:	 No.  But some of us became cooks.

5	 A	:	 Did all of your classmates
			   become parents?
	 B	:	 No.  But many of them became
			   parents.

Talk Boost

Did all of them become teachers?12

 all of ~は「～のうちすべて，全員」という意味で，「~」にあたる部分には複数形の名詞や代名詞がきます。
 many peopleだと「たくさんの人々」という意味で，数十人から数億人まで広い範囲をカバーしますが，many of 
the peopleだと「その人たちのうちの多くは」となり，話題に上った人たちのうちの何人かという意味で，規模が小
さくなります。

 2問（英語・日本語）を40秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Did all of them become teachers?
B : No.  But one of them became a teacher.
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 many
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 one
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 the boys
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2	 A	:	 Did you practice speaking English?
	 B	:	 Yes, I did.
			   My friend taught me English.

4	 A	:	 Did you give up smoking?
	 B	:	 Yes, I did.
			   It’s not good for my health.

6	 A	:	 Did you quit jogging
			   around the castle grounds?
	 B	:	 Yes, I did.
			   It was too hard for me.

1	 A	:	 Did you enjoy shopping?
	 B	:	 Yes, I did.
			   I like shopping very much.

3	 A	:	 Did you stop eating junk food?
	 B	:	 Yes, I did.
			   But my weight is the same.

5	 A	:	 Did you finish reading the book?
	 B	:	 Yes, I did.
			   I’m sleepy now because I stayed up
			   all night.

Talk Boost

Did you enjoy fishing?13

 モデルダイアログの　　部には，I like fishing very much. / I didn’t catch any fish, but it was fun. / But 
my hands smelled bad.など，さまざまな文が考えられます。想像力を働かせましょう。

 enjoy，practice，stop，give up，finish，quitなどの動詞（句）の直後には，名詞か動名詞（～ing）がきます。
動名詞は「～すること」という意味で，実際に行っていることを表します。

 2問（英語・日本語）を40秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Did you enjoy fishing?
B : Yes, I did.  Fishing is a lot of fun.

 enjoy
 shop

1

 stop
 eat junk food

3

 finish
 read the book

5

 practice
 speak English

2

 give up
 smoke

4

 quit
 jog around the castle grounds

6

 the book

ctice

 give up
 smoke
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2	 A	:	 Do you like playing video games?
	 B	:	 Yes, I do.
			   Playing video games is a lot of fun.
			   I like playing on the internet.

4	 A	:	 Do you like taking photos?
	 B	:	 Yes, I do.
			   Taking photos is a lot of fun.  I often
			   take a walk for it.

6	 A	:	 Do you like doing volunteer work?
	 B	:	 Yes, I do.  
			   Doing volunteer work is a lot of fun.
			   My classmates also like it.

1	 A	:	 Do you like swimming?
	 B	:	 Yes, I do.
			   Swimming is a lot of fun.  I like
			   swimming slowly.

3	 A	:	 Do you like drawing pictures?
	 B	:	 Yes, I do.
			   Drawing pictures is a lot of fun.
			   I want to be an illustrator.

5	 A	:	 Do you like speaking English?
	 B	:	 Yes, I do.
			   Speaking English is a lot of fun.
			   I still can’t speak well, though.

Talk Boost

Dancing is a lot of fun.14

 モデルダイアログの　　部にはその他の例として，Dancing is good for your health. / I practice dancing 
every Sunday. / My sister is very good at dancing.などが考えられます。

 “~, though”は「～だけどね」という意味で，thoughは舌
した
先
さき
を歯の間から1cm出し，それを引っ込めながら「ゾウ」

と発音します。4 のphotoはphotographの略式表現です。
 2問（英語・日本語）を30秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Do you like dancing?
B : Yes, I do.  Dancing is a lot of fun.
  I still can’t dance well, though.

 swim

 draw pictures

 speak English

 play video games

 take photos

 do volunteer work
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2	 A	:	 What do you want to drink?
	 B	:	 I want to drink coffee.
	 A	:	 So do I.  Why don’t we go to the
			   coffee shop near here?
			 

4	 A	:	 What do you want to see next?
	 B	:	 I want to see the giraffes.
	 A	:	 So do I.  Why don’t we go this
			   way and take a shortcut?
			 

6	 A	:	 What do you want to do now?
	 B	:	 I want to take a rest.
	 A	:	 So do I.  Why don’t we go to that
			   confectionery and have some
			   sweets?

1	 A	:	 What do you want to cook
			   for dinner?
	 B	:	 I want to cook pizza.
	 A	:	 So do I.  Why don’t we go to a
			   supermarket?

3	 A	:	 What do you want to buy?
	 B	:	 I want to buy swimwear.
	 A	:	 So do I.  Why don’t we go upstairs?

5	 A	:	 What do you want to ride next?
	 B	:	 I want to ride a roller coaster.
	 A	:	 So do I.  Why don’t we go to
			   Space Mountain?

Talk Boost

I want to eat hamburgers.15

 want to ~は「～することを望む」=「～したい（と思う）」という意味です。「～すること」は〈動詞 ing〉と〈to +動詞
原形〉の2通りで表せますが，原則として~ingは実際に行っていることを，to ~はその行動に向かっていることを
表します。Why don’t we ~?は「私たちはなぜ～しないの？」=「～しようよ」という意味です。

  このページで練習したことは Part 37 で応用します。しっかりマスターしておきましょう。
  2問（英語・日本語）を40秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : What do you want to eat for lunch?
B : I want to eat hamburgers.
A : So do I.
  Why don’t we go to Burger Queen?
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Example 1
A :	 What do you want to be when you grow up?
B :	 I want to be a police officer.
A :	 Why do you want to be a police officer?
B :	 Because I want to help people in trouble.

Example 2
A :	 What do you want to be when you grow up?
B :	 I want to be an illustrator.
A :	 Why do you want to be an illustrator?
B :	 Because I love drawing pictures.  I want to become better at that.

Example 3
A :	 What do you want to be when you grow up?
B :	 I want to be a cook.
A :	 Why do you want to be a cook?
B :	 Because my father is a cook and he brings many people happiness.

Example 4
A :	 What do you want to be when you grow up?
B :	 I want to be a singer.
A :	 Why do you want to be a singer?
B :	 Because I just feel singing is my calling.

Talk Boost

What do you want to be
when you grow up?16

 want to be ~は「（長い間）～でありたい」という意味で，want to become ~が「～になりたい」です。
 モデルダイアログの　　部では，上記の職業に就きたいと仮定して，その理由づけをしましょう。
 このページで練習したことは Part 26， Part 40 の 1 で応用します。しっかりマスターしておきましょう。
 4問（英語のみ）を40秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : What do you want to be when you grow up?
B : I want to be a pilot.
A : Why do you want to be a pilot?
B : Because I like flying in the sky.

 actor  comedian  cook  doctor

 editor  fashion designer  flight attendant  hairdresser

 illustrator  nurse  office worker  police officer

 singer  teacher  veterinarian  writer

1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16

nt to be when you grow up?

d
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2	 A	:	 What would you like to do
			   this weekend?
	 B	:	 I’d like to go to an amusement park.

4	 A	:	 What would you like to do
			   this weekend?
	 B	:	 I’d like to join a sightseeing tour.

6	 A	:	 What would you like to do
			   this weekend?
	 B	:	 I’d like to sleep all day.

1	 A	:	 What would you like to do
			   this weekend?
	 B	:	 I’d like to go camping.

3	 A	:	 What would you like to do
			   this weekend?
	 B	:	 I’d like to go to a baseball game.

5	 A	:	 What would you like to do
			   this weekend?
	 B	:	 I’d like to visit the museum.

Talk Boost

What would you like to do
this weekend?17

 would like to ~は「～したいと思う，～させてもらいたい」という控
ひか
えめな希望や考えを表す表現です。Would 

you like to ~?は「～することはいかがですか，～しませんか」と丁
てい
寧
ねい
に何かを勧

すす
める表現で，その準備がしてあっ

たり，準備をしてあげるつもりがあることを暗示しています。Do you want to ~?は単にたずねているだけで，準
備がしてあるかどうかは不明です。

 3問（英語・日本語）を30秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : What would you like to do this weekend?
B : I’d like to go shopping.

 go camping

1

 go to a baseball game

3

 visit the museum

5

 go to an amusement park

2

 join a sightseeing tour

4

 sleep all day
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 sightseeing tour

o this weekend?
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1	 A	:	 Why do you stay up late?
	 B	:	 To check Instagram and Twitter.
			   Once I start looking at them,
			   I can’t stop.

3	 A	:	 Why do you go to the staff room
			   so often?
	 B	:	 To cool down in summer and
			   warm up in winter.  Our classroom
			   is too hot in summer and too cold
			   in winter.

5	 A	:	 Why do people work?
	 B	:	 To earn a living, to enjoy their
			   hobbies, to realize their dreams ....
			   I think it depends on each person.

2	 A	:	 Why do we study English?
	 B	:	 To be able to communicate with
			   many people from different countries.
			   Also, learning languages broadens
			   our horizons.

4	 A	:	 Why do people climb mountains?
	 B	:	 To enjoy the view from the top.
			   It’s good for their health, too.
			   My grandparents became so fine
			   after they started climbing mountains 	
			   two years ago.

6	 A	:	 Why do Japanese people wear
			   surgical masks?
	 B	:	 To hide their faces.  Many Japanese
			   feel at ease when they wear masks.
			   And now, under COVID-19 pandemic,
			   people in all countries around the
			   world wear surgical masks.

Talk Boost

 you
 stay up late

 you
 go to the staff room so often

 people
 work

 we
 study English

 people
 climb mountains

 Japanese people
 wear surgical masks

Why do you get up early?
  To make breakfast.18

 Whyは理由や目的をたずねる表現ですが，「なぜ～なことをする［した］の？」と不思議に思ったりいぶかしく思った
りしたときに使うことがあり，目的をたずねるときはWhat ~ for?（例：What do you use it for?）をよく使いま
す。

 3 はあなたがよく職員室へ行くと仮定して　　部を作ってください。6 は外国の方によく聞かれる質問です。
 3問（英語のみ）を30秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Why do you get up early?
B : To make breakfast for my family.
  This morning, I made some sandwiches.

1

3

5

2

4

6

 people

panese people
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2	 A	:	 What’s your brother’s favorite way
			   to relax?
	 B	:	 Playing the guitar is his favorite
			   way to relax.  He enjoys playing
			   the guitar very much.
	 A	:	 I like to play the guitar, too.

4	 A	:	 What’s your mother’s favorite way
			   to relax?
	 B	:	 Chatting on the phone is her
			   favorite way to relax.  She enjoys
			   chatting on the phone very much.
	 A	:	 I like to chat on the phone, too.

6	 A	:	 What’s your favorite way to relax?
	 B	:	 Making sweets is my favorite way
			   to relax.  I enjoy making sweets
			   very much.
	 A	:	 I like to make sweets, too.

1	 A	:	 What’s your favorite way
			   to relax?
	 B	:	 Reading comic books is my favorite
			   way to relax.  I enjoy reading comic
			    books very much.
	 A	:	 I like to read comic books, too.

3	 A	:	 What’s Kate’s favorite way
			   to relax?
	 B	:	 Window-shopping is her favorite
			   way to relax.  She enjoys
			   window-shopping very much.
	 A	:	 I like to window-shop, too.

5	 A	:	 What’s your parents’ favorite way
			   to relax?
	 B	:	 Watching movies is their favorite 
			   way to relax.  They enjoy watching
			   movies very much.
	 A	:	 I like to watch movies, too.

Talk Boost

What’s your favorite way to relax?19

 to ~には「～するための，～すべき，～するのにふさわしい」という意味があり，直前の名詞を修飾します。way to 
~ / time to ~ / place to ~ / turn to ~ / chance to ~ / thing to ~などがその仲間です。

 モデルダイアログ3行目の enjoyは，主語が3人称単数の場合は enjoysとしてください。
 6 は，先生の質問に対して自分のお気に入りのリラックス法を答えましょう。
 2問（英語・日本語）を60秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : What’s your favorite way to relax?
B : Listening to music is my favorite way to relax.
  I enjoy listening to music very much.
A : I like to listen to music, too.
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Example 4
A :	 How are you?
B :	 I feel terrible.
A :	 What’s the matter?
B :	 I have a bruise in my thigh.
A :	 Oh, I’m sorry to hear that.

Example 5
A :	 How are you?
B :	 I feel terrible.
A :	 What’s the matter?
B :	 I have a swollen bug bite.
A :	 Oh, I’m sorry to hear that.

Example 6
A :	 How are you?
B :	 Not so good.
A :	 What’s wrong?
B :	 I have a stiff shoulder.
A :	 Oh, I’m sorry to hear that.

Example 1
A :	 How are you?
B :	 Not so good.
A :	 What’s wrong?
B :	 I have a fever.
A :	 Oh, I’m sorry to hear that.

Example 2
A :	 How are you?
B :	 I feel terrible.
A :	 What’s wrong?
B :	 I have the flu.
A :	 Oh, I’m sorry to hear that.

Example 3
A :	 How are you?
B :	 Not so good.
A :	 What’s the matter?
B :	 I have a cut on my finger.
A :	 Oh, I’m sorry to hear that.

Talk Boost

I’m sorry to hear that.20

 Not so good. / I feel terrible.とWhat’s the matter? / What’s wrong?はどちらかを選んで使いましょう。
毎回かえてもかまいません。

 病気やけがはhaveを使って表します。病名はa ~が多いですが，インフルエンザは fluか the fluと言います。
 be sorry to ~の sorryは「気の毒に思って」です。「～して嬉しい」はbe happy[glad] to ~と言います。
 4問（英語・日本語）を60秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : How are you?
B : Not so good. / I feel terrible.
A : What’s the matter? / What’s wrong?
B : I have a headache.
A : Oh, I’m sorry to hear that.

 a stomachache

1

 a toothache

2

 a sore throat

3

 a cold

4
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2	 A	:	 Do you think Alex won the game?
	 B	:	 I’m sure he did.

4	 A	:	 Do you think you can pass
			   the exam?
	 B	:	 I hope I can.

6	 A	:	 Do you think we are on class duty
			   today?
	 B	:	 I don’t think we are.

1	 A	:	 Do you think Jane has a
			   boyfriend?
	 B	:	 I think she does.

3	 A	:	 Do you think there was an arcade
			   here?
	 B	:	 I hear there was.

5	 A	:	 Do you think it will rain
			   tomorrow?
	 B	:	 I’m afraid it will.

Talk Boost

I think (that) he has a dog.21

 （　　）内の thatは「～ということ」という意味でよく省略しますが，「～ということと，…ということを」のように伝
えるべき内容が2つ以上あるときは，〈I think (that) 主語+動詞~ and that 主語+動詞 ...〉のように2つめ以
降の thatは必ずつけます。

 「～しないと思う」は〈think (that) 否定文〉ではなく，6 のように〈don’t think (that) 肯定文〉とします。
 2問（英語・日本語）を30秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Do you think (that) Mr. Collins has a dog?
B : I think (that) he does.
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1	 A	:	 When do you take a bus?
	 B	:	 I take a bus when I go to school.

3	 A	:	 When do you call your friends?
	 B	:	 I call my friends when we do our
			   homework together.

5	 A	:	 When do you feel excited?
	 B	:	 I feel excited when I’m watching
			   a football game.

2	 A	:	 When do you go to the library?
	 B	:	 I go to the library when I want to
			   read a novel.

4	 A	:	 When do you clean your room?
	 B	:	 I clean my room when my friends
			   come.

6	 A	:	 When do you get angry?
	 B	:	 I get angry when my mother comes
			   into my room without knocking.

Talk Boost

I take a taxi when I have 
heavy bags.22

 モデルダイアログの2文目は だれ何が［は］ （I）➡ どうする  （take）➡ だれ何を［に］ （a taxi）➡ いつ  （when I 
have heavy bags）という構造で，文の中に〈when +主語+動詞〉がある形になっており，まるでイタリアの中に
バチカン市国があるような構造になっています。　　部は自分なりに答えを作りましょう。

 このページで練習したことは Part 25 で応用します。しっかりマスターしておきましょう。
 3問（英語のみ）を30秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : When do you take a taxi?
B : I take a taxi when I have heavy bags.

 take a bus

 call your friends

 feel excited

 go to the library

 clean your room

 get angry
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1	 A	:	 Do you like watching sports?
	 B	:	 Yes, I like it because I’m very 
			   encouraged by their plays.

3	 A	:	 Do you like folding the laundry?
	 B	:	 No, I don’t like it because it’s 
			   boring.

5	 A	:	 Do you like visiting new places?
	 B	:	 Yes, I like it because I like eating
			   local food.

2	 A	:	 Do you like going to a bookstore?
	 B	:	 Yes, I like it because I love the smell
			   of books.

4	 A	:	 Do you like looking at the sky?
	 B	:	 Yes, I like it because I can feel that
			   my worries are so small.

6	 A	:	 Do you like doing Talk and Talk?
	 B	:	 Yes, I like it because Talk Boost is
			   interesting.

Talk Boost

I don’t like riding a bike
because I get tired.23

 モデルダイアログの2文目は だれ何が［は］ （I）➡ どうする（like）➡ だれ何を［に］（it）➡ なぜ （because I can 
go to many places by bike）という構造で，文の中に〈because +主語+動詞〉がある形になっており，これもイ
タリアの中にバチカン市国があるような構造です。　　部は自分なりに答えを作りましょう。

 このページで練習したことは Part 26 で応用します。しっかりマスターしておきましょう。
 2問（英語のみ）を30秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Do you like riding a bike?
B : Yes, I like it because I can go to many places by bike. 
  / No, I don’t like it
  because I get tired.
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Example 1
If I live in America, I will see musicals on Broadway.
If I see musicals on Broadway, I will tell my boyfriend about it.
If I tell my boyfriend about it, I will dance with him like a dancer.
If I dance with him like a dancer, I will feel happy and get hungry.
If I feel happy and get hungry, I will go out for hamburgers with him.

Example 2
If I have a lot of money, I will build a big house.
If I build a big house, I will live in that house alone.
If I live in that house alone, I will feel lonely.
If I feel lonely, I will sell that house.
If I sell that house, I will build a small house and live with my family.

Talk Boost

 上のモデル文のように，どんどん連想して文をつないでいこう。
 1つめのお題は「もしアメリカに住むとしたら」。自分でやってみよう。

 If I live in America, .

 If .

 If .

 If .

 If .

 2つめのお題は「もしお金がたくさんあったら」。グループで協力してやってみよう。

 If I have a lot of money, .

 If .

 If .

 If .

 If .

“If I ...” Association Game24

 この活動は「もしAならBします。もしBならCします。もしCならDします。…」と続く連想ゲームです。ifの直
後の動詞は原則として未来のことでも現在形で表します。 だれ何が［は］（I）➡ どうする（will play）➡ だれ何を［に］
（tennis）➡ どのような条件で（if it is sunny tomorrow）というバチカン市国の構造です。
 このページで練習したことは Part 40 の 1 で応用します。しっかりマスターしておきましょう。
 5文（英語のみ）を30秒以内に言えたら合格です。

If it is sunny tomorrow, I will play tennis.
If I play tennis, I will be thirsty.
If I am thirsty, I will drink juice.
If I drink juice, I will feel refreshed.
If I feel refreshed, ....
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Example 1
This is the staff room.  There are always teachers in this room.  We often come to this 
room when we are on class duty.  Some students come to ask for handouts.

Example 2	
This is the nurse’s room.  Our school nurse is in this room.  We use this room when we are 
sick or get hurt.  I sometimes come here to get a Band-Aid.

Example 3
This is the music room.  We use this room to take music classes.  There are many kinds of 
musical instruments in this room.  Some students use this room for club activities.

Example 4
This is the library.  There are books, DVDs, newspapers, and even comic books in this 
room.  A lot of students come here during short breaks or after school.  Some students use 
this room to study.

Example 5
This is the gym.  It is new and large.  We use this place for P.E. classes or club activities 
after school.  The whole school gathers here when we have a school assembly.

Talk Boost

25 Showing around the School

 右ページの学校の見取り図を参考にして，どの部屋にどんなものがあるかを英語で説明しましょう。
 A and BやA, B, and Cのように複数のものを言う場合でも，Aが単数のときはThere is a ~ and ~s in this 
room.のようにareではなく isを使います。

 〈There + be動詞〉の直後の主語は新情報です。旧情報の場合は〈主語+ be動詞+場所〉で表します。
 2部屋について4文ずつ（英語のみ）を30秒以内に言えたら合格です。

 学校内の場所を，上のモデル文を参考にして英語で説明しよう。
 説明するときは，今までに習ったいろいろな表現を組み合わせて使ってみよう。

 ・その部屋に何があるかを説明するとき
 　➡ There is[are] ~.
 ・その部屋は何をするために使うのか，何をするために来るのかを説明するとき
 　➡ We use[come to] this room[this place] to ~.
 ・その部屋にはどんなときに来るのか，どんなときに使うのかを説明するとき
 　➡ We come to[use] this room[this place] when ~.

This is the cooking room.  There are some sinks and many kinds of 
kitchen tools in this room.  We use this room when we practice cooking.  
Sometimes a good smell comes from this room.

 ask for handouts  change our shoes  clean it  do experiments

 get a Band-Aid  have a P.E. class  have meetings  wash our hands

 practice cooking  practice painting  practice singing  practice sewing

 ch nge our shoes  cle n it
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									                   October 12, 2021
	 I went to Tokyo to see my uncle.  He was in a hospital because he broke his leg
last week.  When I gave him a book, he looked happy.  I was very glad to see that.
	 If I can go to Tokyo again next summer, I want to see a baseball game at Tokyo
Dome because I am a big fan of the Giants.  My uncle knows a lot about baseball,
so I would like to visit Tokyo Dome with him.

Example
	 I went to Hokkaido to see my friend there.  She moved to Hokkaido last year.  I was 
really sad when I heard she had to leave this town.  So this trip was a long-awaited one 
for me.
	 I visited her place and we talked a lot and lot and lot because we had so many 
things to tell each other during this past year.  I was really happy to see her again.
	 She said she would like to come to my place next time.  If that happens, we will talk 
all through the night.  I can’t wait!

Talk Boost

26 Writing a Journal
[ Advanced ]

 なぜ  の部分で〈to +動詞原形〉を使うと，「～するために，～しに，～して」という意味になります。toの直後
の動詞は，その文の主語である人が行った行為と決まっていますので，主語を言う必要がなく，to + どうする  ➡
だれ何を［に］ ➡ どのように  ⇔ どこ  ➡ いつ  ➡ なぜ  のように続きます。枝分かれ図で言いたいことを
まとめましょう。

 この回は，インタビューテストはありません。

 今までに習った表現を使って，英文日記を書いてみよう。
 まず，1文1文が短い文で書かれた上の日記の 1  と 2， 3  と 4， 5  と 6  を，次の3種類の方
法を使ってつなぎ合わせた例を見てみよう（2段落目は上の続きの内容）。

 ➡ to +動詞原形（～するために /～するための /～することを）
 ➡ because（なぜなら～だから）
 ➡ when（～するとき）

 　 

October 12, 2021

I went to Tokyo to see my uncle.  He was in a hospital because he broke his leg 
last week.  When I gave him a book, he looked happy.  I was very glad to see that.
If I can go to Tokyo again next summer, I want to see a baseball game at Tokyo 

Dome because I am a big fan of the Giants.  My uncle knows a lot about baseball, 
so I would like to visit Tokyo Dome with him.

 次に，自分が「最近行ったところ」「最近したこと」などについて書いてみよう。
 ➡ 最初に枝分かれ図を作って書きたいことを整理すると，書きやすくなります。

 　 

清水寺
店がたくさんあった
清水の舞台にのぼった
音羽の滝があった

金色だった
外国人がたくさんいた
「金閣寺」ではなく「金閣」が本名だった

試食した
高かった
真ん中は恋愛成就だった

池に映ってきれいだった
話したかった
驚いた

おいしかった
怖かった
飲んだ

また行きたい
金閣寺

京
都
に
行
っ
た

 I went to Tokyo.
 I saw my uncle.
 He was in a hospital.
 He broke his leg last week.
 I gave him a book.
 He looked happy.

1

2

3

4

5

6
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2	 A	:	 Can I buy this game?
	 B	:	 No, you can’t!
	 A	:	 Then, may I buy this toy?
	 B	:	 No, you may not!  This one looks
			   more fun!

4	 A	:	 Can I buy this bag?
	 B	:	 No, you can’t!
	 A	:	 Then, may I buy this backpack?
	 B	:	 No, you may not!  You already
			   have both, don’t you?

6	 A	:	 Can I buy this beer?
	 B	:	 No, you can’t!
	 A	:	 Then, may I buy this wine?
	 B	:	 No, you may not!  You’re only five
			   years old!

1	 A	:	 Can I buy this magazine?
	 B	:	 No, you can’t!
	 A	:	 Then, may I buy this comic book?
	 B	:	 No, you may not!  Do your
			   homework first!

3	 A	:	 Can I buy this wireless headset?
	 B	:	 No, you can’t!
	 A	:	 Then, may I buy this
			   mobile battery?
	 B	:	 No, you may not!  You don’t have
			   a smartphone.

5	 A	:	 Can I buy this ring?
	 B	:	 No, you can’t!
	 A	:	 Then, may I buy this necklace?
	 B	:	 No, you may not!  Buy them
			   yourself when you grow up.

Talk Boost

May I buy this cookie?27

 Can I ~?は「～してもいいですか」と許可を求める表現で，友人や家族の間などでよく使います。May I ~?は
Can I ~?よりも丁

てい
寧
ねい
で，へりくだったニュアンスがあります。Yes, you may. / No, you may not.は目上の人

から目下の人に許可を与えるとき，与えないときの表現なので，May I ~?とたずねられた場合でも，代わりにYes, 
you can. / I’m sorry, but you can’t.などと答えたりします。

 2問（英語のみ）を30秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Can I buy this chocolate bar?
B : No, you can’t!
A : Then, may I buy this cookie?
B : No, you may not!
  You eat too much sugar!

 magazine
 comic book

1

 wireless headset
 mobile battery

3

 ring
 necklace

5

 game
 toy

2

 bag
 backpack

4

 beer
 wine

6

zine

 wireless headset

me
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1	 A	:	 Will you make me lunch?
	 B	:	 Sure.

3	 A	:	 Will you take a picture with me?
	 B	:	 Sure.

5	 A	:	 Will you help me with my
			   homework?
	 B	:	 No way!

2	 A	:	 Will you sing me a song?
	 B	:	 I’m sorry, I can’t.

4	 A	:	 Will you buy me some juice?
	 B	:	 No way!

6	 A	:	 Will you show me pictures of you
			   when you were small?
	 B	:	 I’m sorry, I can’t.

Talk Boost

 男女でペアになり，相手が Sure.と言ってくれそうなお願いはどれかを当てよう。
 まず，下の 1～6 の内容を見て，自分が Sure.と答えてもよいと思うものと，相手が Sure.と答え
てくれそうなものを，それぞれ2つずつ選んで番号を書こう。

 自分　［　　　　　/　　　　　］　　相手　［　　　　　/　　　　　］

 じゃんけんをして勝ったほうから，自分が予想したお願いを相手にしてみよう。
 ・相手の答えが Sure.だった場合
 　➡ 上に書いた番号を◯で囲んで攻守交代する
 ・相手の答えが I’m sorry, I can’t.やNo way!だった場合
 　➡ 攻守交代する

 先に相手の答えを2つとも当てられたほうが勝ち！

Will you help me?28

 1～6 のオプションは全ていやだ！と思う人もいるかもしれませんが，そこはゲームですので我慢して2つ選んでくだ
さい。相手が選んだものを相手よりも早く当てたほうが勝ちです。

 Will you ~?は「～してくれる意思ある？」という直接的な依頼ですので，親しい間柄で使います。過去形のWould 
you ~?のほうが丁

てい
寧
ねい
な表現です。

 この回は，インタビューテストはありません。

A : Will you help me?
B : Sure. / I’m sorry, I can’t. / No way!

 make me lunch

1

 sing me a song

2

 take a picture with me

3

 buy me some juice

4

 help me with my homework

5

 show me pictures of you
 when you were small

6
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1	 A	:	 Shall I clean your room?
	 B	:	 No, thank you.

3	 A	:	 Shall I give you my autograph?
	 B	:	 No, thank you.

5	 A	:	 Shall I show you my photograph?
	 B	:	 Yes, please.

2	 A	:	 Shall I teach you math?
	 B	:	 Yes, please.

4	 A	:	 Shall I order you a pizza?
	 B	:	 Yes, please.

6	 A	:	 Shall I lend you my handkerchief?
	 B	:	 No, thank you.

Talk Boost

Shall I help you?29

A : Shall I help you?
B : Yes, please. / No, thank you.

 男女でペアになり，相手がYes, please.と言いそうな申し出はどれかを当てよう。
 まず，下の 1～6 の内容を見て，自分がYes, please.と言おうと思うものと，相手がYes, please.
と言いそうなものを，それぞれ2つずつ選んで番号を書こう。

 自分　［　　　　　/　　　　　］　　相手　［　　　　　/　　　　　］

 じゃんけんをして勝ったほうから，自分が予想した申し出を相手にしてみよう。
 ・相手の答えがYes, please.だった場合
 　➡ 上に書いた番号を◯で囲む
 ・相手の答えがNo, thank you.だった場合
 　➡ 攻守交代する

 先に相手の答えを2つとも当てられたほうが勝ち！

 このゲームも Part 28 同様，相手が選んだ2つを先に当てたほうが勝ちです。お節介に聞こえるものばかりですが，
相手を見て2つ選んであげてください。そして，相手がどれを選んだか推測してください。

 Shall I ~?は「～してあげましょうか」という提案や申し出の表現で，Yes, please. / No, thank you.と答えます。
 この回は，インタビューテストはありません。

 clean your room

1

 teach you math

2

 give you my autograph

3

 order you a pizza

4

 show you my photograph

5

 lend you my handkerchief

6

36



1	 A	:	 I’m sleepy.
	 B	:	 Me, too.  Shall we take a nap?
	 A	:	 Yes, let’s.
	 B	:	 Hey, Siri!  Wake us up in 30 
			   minutes!

3	 A	:	 I’m thirsty.
	 B	:	 Me, too.  Shall we go to the juice
			   bar?
	 A	:	 Yes, let’s.
	 B	:	 Do you know where it is?

5	 A	:	 I’m cold.
	 B	:	 Me, too.  Shall we eat some soup?
	 A	:	 Yes, let’s.
	 B	:	 Here you are.  I always carry soup.

2	 A	:	 I’m tired.
	 B	:	 Me, too.  Shall we sit on a bench?
	 A	:	 Yes, let’s.
	 B	:	 Oh, there’s one over there.

4	 A	:	 I’m sick.
	 B	:	 Me, too.  Shall we see a doctor?
	 A	:	 Yes, let’s.
	 B	:	 Oh, the doctor is sick, too.

6	 A	:	 I’m bored.
	 B	:	 Me, too.  Shall we go out?
	 A	:	 Yes, let’s.
	 B	:	 But we just came back only 10
			   minutes ago.

Talk Boost

Shall we go to a ramen shop?30

 Shall we ~?には「私たちが～してあげましょうか」という提案と，「あなたも一緒に～しましょう」という勧誘の2つ
の意味がありますが，このパートでは後者の意味で使われています。答え方はYes, let’s.やNo, let’s not.のほか，
Well, I’m sorry, I can’t.などたくさんの方法があります。

 Bさんの2つめのセリフは自分で考えましょう。
 2問（英語のみ）を30秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : I’m hungry.
B : Me, too.  Shall we go to a ramen shop?
A : Yes, let’s.
B : And, can you lend me some money?

 sleepy
 　

 sick
 　

 tired
 　

 cold
 　

 thirsty
 　

 bored
 　

1

4

2

5

3

6

go to the juice bar
go out
take a nap
eat some soup 
sit on a bench
see a doctor

2
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1	 A	:	 Be quiet!
	 B	:	 Pardon me?
	 A	:	 You must be quiet.  The baby is
			   sleeping.
	 B	:	 Oh, sorry.

3	 A	:	 Hurry up!
	 B	:	 Pardon me?
	 A	:	 You must hurry up.  You’ll miss the
			   train if you don’t.
	 B	:	 I understand.

5	 A	:	 Come to the staff room!
	 B	:	 Pardon me?
	 A	:	 You must come to the staff room.
			   I have something to give you.
	 B	:	 I see.  I’ll be right there.

2	 A	:	 Watch out!
	 B	:	 Pardon me?
	 A	:	 You must watch out.  A car is
			   coming!
	 B	:	 Oops!

4	 A	:	 Fasten your seat belt!
	 B	:	 Pardon me?
	 A	:	 You must fasten your seat belt.
			   It saves your life when you have an
			   accident.
	 B	:	 That’s right.  Thank you!

6	 A	:	 Put your smartphone in your bag!
	 B	:	 Pardon me?
	 A	:	 You must put your smartphone
			   in your bag.  The exam starts soon.
	 B	:	 Oh no!

Talk Boost

You must stop.31

 You must ~.は「あなた（たち）は～しなければならない」という意味で，立場が上の人が命令するときによく使いま
す。この表現は Part 37 で応用しますので，きちんと使えるようにしておきましょう。

 Pardon me?は聞き取れなかったときの聞き返しの表現です。Pardon?とするとカジュアルさが増し，I beg your 
pardon?と言うと丁

てい
寧
ねい
さが増します。　　部ではなぜそうしないといけないのかを説明してみましょう。

 2問（英語のみ）を30秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Stop!
B : Pardon me?
A : You must stop.  There is a “STOP” sign.
B : I see.  Thank you!

 be quiet

1

 hurry up

3

 come to the staff room

5

 watch out

2

 fasten your seat belt

4

 put your smartphone in your bag

6
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1	 A	:	 You mustn’t eat snacks.
	 B	:	 Why not?
	 A	:	 We mustn’t bring snacks to school.

3	 A	:	 You mustn’t leave your textbooks.
	 B	:	 Why not?
	 A	:	 You’re going to use them for your 
			   homework today.

5	 A	:	 You mustn’t wear earrings.
	 B	:	 Why not?
	 A	:	 Umm ... because it’s our school’s
			   rule.  I want to wear ones, too.

2	 A	:	 You mustn’t drink juice.
	 B	:	 Why not?
	 A	:	 We mustn’t bring juice to school.
			   Tea and water are OK.

4	 A	:	 You mustn’t drive to school.
	 B	:	 Why not?
	 A	:	 Only teachers can drive to school.

6	 A	:	 You mustn’t wear makeup.
	 B	:	 Why not?
	 A	:	 They say wearing makeup distracts
			   students from studying.  But we
			   can wear a colorless lip balm.

Talk Boost

You mustn’t sit on the desk.32

 国によって学校の制度や規則は異なりますが，上の 1～6 の項目は日本では禁止している中学校や高校が多いので，
外国から留学してきた生徒は不思議に思うかもしれません。なぜ禁止されているのかを，英語で説明してみましょう。
なお，アメリカでは16歳で運転免許を取得することができます。この表現も Part 37 で応用します。

 2問（英語のみ）を30秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : You mustn’t sit on the desk.
B : Why not?
A : The desks are for studying.

 eat snacks

 leave your textbooks

 wear earrings

 drink juice

 drive to school

 wear makeup

1

3

5

2

4

6
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1	 A	:	 Do you have to clean the
			   bathroom?
	 B	:	 No.  I don’t have to clean the
			   bathroom.  I have to clean my
			   room.
	 A	:	 How often do you clean your room?

3	 A	:	 Does your husband have to do
			   the dishes?
	 B	:	 No.  He doesn’t have to do the
			   dishes.  He has to clear the table.
	 A	:	 Then who does the dishes?

5	 A	:	 Do you and Billy have to do the
			   laundry?
	 B	:	 No.  We don’t have to do the
			   laundry.  We have to throw away
			   the garbage.
	 A	:	 Oh, really.  Taking out the garbage
			   is my job, too.

2	 A	:	 Do you have to walk your dog?
	 B	:	 No.  I don’t have to walk my dog.
			   I have to feed my dog.
	 A	:	 I see.  What’s his favorite?

4	 A	:	 Do we have to put our futons away?
	 B	:	 No.  We don’t have to put our 
			   futons away.  We have to put our
			   dirty clothes in the hamper.	
	 A	:	 All right.  Hey, look, the hamper is
			   already full.

6	 A	:	 Do I have to prepare the meal?
	 B	:	 No.  You don’t have to prepare the
			   meal.  You have to take care of
			   your sister.
	 A	:	 Got it.  Where is she?

Talk Boost

Do you have to help your mother?33

 have to ~は「そうしなければならない事情がある，状況にある」という意味で，mustは話し手によって課された義
務を表します。テスト前は I have to study.と思っていてもやらずに終わり，テストの結果を見て青ざめて I must 
study.と叫ぶ，なんてことにならないように。do (es) n’t have to ~とmustn’t ~の意味のちがいも区別しておき
ましょう。ここでの表現も Part 37 で応用します。

 2問（英語のみ）を40秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Do you have to help your mother?
B : No.  I don’t have to help my mother.
  I have to help my father.
A : How do you help him?

 you
 clean the bathroom
 clean my room

1

 your husband
 do the dishes
 clear the table

3

 you and Billy
 do the laundry
 throw away the garbage

5

 you
 walk your dog
 feed my dog

2

 we
 put our futons away
 put our dirty clothes in the hamper

4

 I
 prepare the meal
 take care of your sister

6

 your husband

d Billy

 you
alk your dog

 we
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1	 A	:	 Should I study at night or early in
			   the morning?
	 B	:	 I think you should study early in
			   the morning because your mind is
			   clear in the morning.

3	 A	:	 Should we travel abroad or
			   in Japan on our honeymoon?
	 B	:	 I think you should travel abroad
			   on your honeymoon because you
			   can experience and share something 
			   different and special from everyday
			   life.

5	 A	:	 Should we buy a smartphone now
			   or after we finish school?
	 B	:	 I think you should buy a smartphone
			   now because it can be very useful 
			   for learning.

2	 A	:	 Should I wear sneakers or sandals
			   at summer festivals?
	 B	:	 I think you should wear sneakers
			   because it’s so crowded that 
			   somebody may step on your foot.

4	 A	:	 Should we write reports with a
			   computer or by hand?
	 B	:	 I think you should write reports
			   with a computer because you can
			   edit or revise them easily.

6	 A	:	 Should I work for a major company
			   or a new company?
	 B	:	 I think you should work for a new
			   company because it will excite you
			   more!

Talk Boost

I think you should take a train.34

 モデルダイアログ2行目の take a trainにあたる部分は，自分ならどちらを勧めるかを考えて答えましょう。
 3 ～ 5 のweに対しては，答えをyouで始めてもweで始めてもかまいません。自分も含めて～すべきだと思う場合
はweで始めます。

 5 のafter we finish schoolはafter schoolと異なり，「（中）学校を卒業してから」という意味です。
 2問（英語のみ）を40秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Should I take a train or a bus?
B : I think you should take a train
  because only two buses come each hour.

 I
 study at night
 or early in the morning

 we
 travel abroad or in Japan
 on our honeymoon

 we
 buy a smartphone now
 or after we finish school

 I
 wear sneakers or sandals
 at summer festivals

 we 
 write reports
 with a computer or by hand

 I
 work for a major company
 or a new company

1

3

5

2

4

6

 we

3

kers or s dals

 we 

 work for a major compajor compa any
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2	 A	:	 Did you enjoy your hike in the
			   mountains?
	 B	:	 No, I didn’t enjoy it at all.
	 A	:	 Why not?
	 B	:	 I had to walk all day.

4	 A	:	 Did Paul enjoy the barbecue party?
	 B	:	 No, he didn’t enjoy it at all.
	 A	:	 Why not?
	 B	:	 He had to cook the whole time.

6	 A	:	 Did you enjoy your school trip?
	 B	:	 No, we didn’t enjoy it at all.
	 A	:	 Why not?
	 B	:	 We had to go to bed early.

1	 A	:	 Did you enjoy your winter
			   vacation?
	 B	:	 No, I didn’t enjoy it at all.
	 A	:	 Why not?
	 B	:	 I had to read five books.

3	 A	:	 Did your grandmother enjoy the
			   concert?
	 B	:	 No, she didn’t enjoy it at all.
	 A	:	 Why not?
	 B	:	 She had to listen to rock music.

5	 A	:	 Did your teacher enjoy the school
			   festival?
	 B	:	 No, he didn’t enjoy it at all.
	 A	:	 Why not?
	 B	:	 He had to watch us.

Talk Boost

I had to stand on the train.35

 have toの過去形はhad toです。なお，mustには過去形がないので，mustを過去の意味で使いたいときもhad 
toで代用します。

 4行目の文は，Becauseを文頭に加えても同じ意味になります。
 2問（英語・日本語）を50秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Did you enjoy your trip?
B : No, I didn’t enjoy it at all.
A : Why not?
B : I had to stand on the train for two hours.

 you
 your winter vacation
 read five books

1

 your grandmother
 the concert
 listen to rock music

3

 your teacher
 the school festival
 watch us

5

 you
 your hike in the mountains
 walk all day

2

 Paul
 the barbecue party
 cook the whole time

4

 you
 your school trip
 go to bed early

6

 your grandmother
 the concert

 your teacher

rbecue party

 you

in for two hoursin for two hours.
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2	 A	:	 Was Liam able to leave the
			   hospital?
	 B	:	 No, he wasn’t.  I hope he gets well
			   soon.

4	 A	:	 Was your brother able to swim
			   across the river?
	 B	:	 No, he wasn’t.	 I helped him!

6	 A	:	 Were Mr. and Mrs. Cooper able to
			   eat something good in Asakusa?
	 B	:	 No, they weren’t.  There were too
			   many people in line at any
			   restaurant.

1	 A	:	 Were you able to download the
			   file?
	 B	:	 No, I wasn’t.  Can you take a
			   look at it?

3	 A	:	 Was Kate able to find her wallet?
	 B	:	 No, she wasn’t.  I’m sorry for her.
			 

5	 A	:	 Were you able to get some sleep
			   on the plane?
	 B	:	 No, I wasn’t.  The person next to
			   me was talking in his sleep all the
			   time.

Talk Boost

Were you able to finish
your homework?36

 be able to ~は canとほぼ同じ意味です。canの過去形は couldですが，Could you ~?は「～してくださいます
か」という丁

てい
寧
ねい
な依頼表現ですので，「～することができましたか」とたずねたいときは〈Were/Was 主語 able 

to ~?〉と言います。
 助動詞は連続して使えませんので，「将来～できる」はwill canではなく，will be able toとします。
 2問（英語のみ）を40秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Were you able to finish your homework?
B : No, I wasn’t.
  I hope I’ll be able to finish it by tomorrow.

 you
 download the file

 Kate
 find her wallet

 you
 get some sleep on the plane

 Liam
 leave the hospital

 your brother
 swim across the river

 Mr. and Mrs. Cooper
 eat something good in Asakusa

1

3

5

2

4

6
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Example
School starts in April in Japan, India, Pakistan, and other countries.
We usually go to school by bus, bike, or on foot.
We don’t drive a car to school.
We have to clean the school building.
We usually eat lunch in the classroom with the whole class.
We have to wear school uniforms.
We usually leave school for home around six o’clock.
What are the differences between your school and ours?

Talk Boost

37 School Systems

 海外の学校と，日本の学校やみなさんが通う学校とのちがいを，have to / don’t have to / must / mustn’t / want 
to / don’t want toなどを使って英語で説明してください。これらの表現を学習したパートを復習したり，ALTに
How are your school and this school different? やWhat is the difference between your school and 
this school? などと聞いたりして作文しましょう。

 この回は，インタビューテストはありません。

 上のモデル文を参考にして，自分の学校について英語で説明してみよう。
 感想など，付け加えたいことがあれば自由に追加しよう。

 School starts in September in America,
 Canada, and other countries.
 They usually go to school by school bus, car, or bike.
 They don’t have to clean the school building.
 They eat lunch at the cafeteria or canteen.
 They don’t have to wear school uniforms.
 They usually leave school for home around four o’clock.
 What do you think about these customs?

1

2

3

4

5

6

学期や休暇など1

通学方法や時程など2

掃除や当番など3

昼食や学校での飲食4

服装や身につけるもの5

放課後の活動や下校時間など6
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2	 A	:	 Is Osaka larger than Tokyo?
	 B	:	 No, it’s not.  It’s smaller than Tokyo.

4	 A	:	 Is my work harder than yours?
	 B	:	 No, it’s not.  It’s easier than mine.

6	 A	:	 Is it cooler today in Okinawa than
			   yesterday?
	 B	:	 No, it’s not.  It’s hotter today in
			   Okinawa than yesterday.

1	 A	:	 Are we stronger than them?
	 B	:	 No, we’re not.  We’re weaker than
			   them.

3	 A	:	 Is Richard younger than Rebecca?
	 B	:	 No, he’s not.  He’s older than her.

5	 A	:	 Am I harder to understand
			   than you?
	 B	:	 No, you’re not.  You’re easier to 	
			   understand than me.

Talk Boost

Are you older than Jack?38

 Bさんのセリフの答え方に関しては，No, の直後は I’m notを除けばyou aren’t / they aren’t / he isn’t / it isn’t
のように〈be動詞+ not〉の部分を短縮形にしたものを練習してきましたが，今回は〈代名詞+ be動詞〉の部分を短
縮し，No, you’re not. / No, they’re not. / No, he’s not. / No, it’s not. のように，notを強調する答え方を
練習しましょう。

 2問（英語・日本語）を30秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Are you older than Jack?
B : No, I’m not.  I’m younger than him.

 you
 strong
 them
 weak

 Richard
 young
 Rebecca
 old

 I
 slow to understand
 you
 fast

 Osaka
 large
 Tokyo
 small

 my work
 hard
 yours
 easy

 it
 cool today in Okinawa
 yesterday
 hot today in Okinawa

1

3

5

2

4

6

 my work
d

 yours

 slow to understand day in Okinawa
day
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2	 A	:	 Are you the fastest in your class?
	 B	:	 No, I’m not.  I’m the third fastest
			   in my class.

4	 A	:	 Is that girl the newest of all the
			   members?
	 B	:	 No, she’s not.  She’s the fourth
			   newest of all the members.
			 
6	 A	:	 Is Kelly’s test score the lowest in her
			   class?
	 B	:	 No, it’s not.  It’s the fifth lowest
			   in her class.

1	 A	:	 Are you the tallest of the five?
	 B	:	 No, I’m not.  I’m the second tallest
			   of the five.

3	 A	:	 Is this box the heaviest of the
			   four?
	 B	:	 No, it’s not.  It’s the second
			   heaviest of the four.

5	 A	:	 Is America the largest in the
			   world?
	 B	:	 No, it’s not.  It’s the third largest
			   in the world.

Talk Boost

Are you the oldest in this school?39

 モデルダイアログの the oldestは the oldest personや the oldest teacherのことですが，最上級の文ではわか
りきっている名詞は省略することが多く，the oldestとなっています。ふつうは単独の形容詞の前に theはつけませ
ん。

 「～の中で」最も…だと言うときは〈in +比較範囲〉，「～のうちで」最も…だと言うときは〈of +比較対象〉を使います。
 2問（英語・日本語）を40秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Are you the oldest in this school?
B : No, I’m not.
  I’m the second oldest in this school.

 you
 tall
 of the five
 second

1

 this box
 heavy
 of the four
 second

3

 America
 large
 in the world
 third

5

 you
 fast
 in your class
 third

2

 that girl
 new
 of all the members
 fourth

4

 Kelly’s test score
 low
 in her class
 fifth

6

 in the world

 in your class

ll the members
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2	 A	:	 Which is more beautiful, the blue
			   sky or the blue sea?
	 B	:	 The blue sea is more beautiful than
			   the blue sky for me.  The blue of
			   the sea brings me peace of mind.

4	 A	:	 Which is more convenient, shopping
			   at a mall or shopping online?
	 B	:	 Shopping online is more convenient
			   than shopping at a mall for me.
			   Visiting many different stores in
			   different places is exhausting.
			 
6	 A	:	 Which is more enjoyable, camping
			   in the mountains or camping on the
			   beach?
	 B	:	 Camping on the beach is more
			   enjoyable than camping in the
			   mountains for me.
			   On the beach, I can fall asleep while 
			   listening to the sound of the waves, 
			   and I can swim as soon as I wake 
			   up in the morning.

1	 A	:	 Which is more important, money
			   or a dream?
	 B	:	 A dream is more important than
			   money for me.  Money can’t buy
			   dreams.

3	 A	:	 Which is more useful, a computer
			   or a smartphone?
	 B	:	 A smartphone is more useful than
			   a computer for me.  It’s much
			   smaller than a computer.

5	 A	:	 Which is more annoying,
			   motorcycle gangs or mosquitoes?
	 B	:	 Mosquitoes are more annoying than
			   motorcycle gangs for me.
			   You know, my mosquito bites
			   are always unbelievably swollen!

Talk Boost

Which is more difficult,
English or math?40

 単語を読むのが苦手な人は，辞書を見て，単語を音節（音のかたまり）に分けて，音節ごとに縦書きするといいですよ。
例えば，difficultはdif  fi  cult，importantは im  por  tant，beautifulはbeau  ti  fulのように分けて縦に
書くと，少し読みやすくなりませんか？ beau「ビュー」も，bea「ビー」＋u「ユー」と考えてはどうでしょうか。音節
が3つ以上ある形容詞にはmoreがつきます。

 2問（英語のみ）を30秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Which is more difficult, English or math?
B : Math is more difficult than English for me.
  I’m poor at math.

 important
 money
 a dream

 useful
 a computer
 a smartphone

 annoying
 motorcycle gangs
 mosquitoes

 beautiful
 the blue sky
 the blue sea

 convenient
 shopping at a mall
 shopping online

 enjoyable
 camping in the mountains
 camping on the beach

1

3

5

2

4

6

 convenient
 shopping at a mall

ant utiful
 the blue sky

nnoying
 motorcycle gangs

ble

ath?
 for me.

47



2	 A	:	 What is the most important thing
			   for you?
	 B	:	 The time when I’m talking with my
			   friends is the most important thing
			   for me.  Even when I’m down, they
			   always bring me up.

4	 A	:	 What is the most popular song
			   in this class?
	 B	:	 “Betelgeuse” is the most popular
			   song in this class.  It’s a theme
			   song for a popular TV drama now.
			 
			 
6	 A	:	 What is the most dangerous place
			   in this school?
	 B	:	 The staff room is the most 
			   dangerous place in this school.
			   There are a lot of scary people
			   in the staff room!

1	 A	:	 What is the most interesting
			   subject for you?
	 B	:	 English is the most interesting
			   subject for me.  The more I learn
			   a foreign language, the more
			   I learn my own language.

3	 A	:	 What is the most delicious food
			   of the school lunch menu?
	 B	:	 Butakimchi-don is the most 
			   delicious food of the school lunch
			   menu.  My classmates often fight
			   for it.

5	 A	:	 Who is the most fashionable 
			   teacher in this school?		
	 B	:	 Mr. Iwai is the most fashionable
			   teacher in this school.  The other
			   Sunday, I saw him on the street.
			   He looked very nice in his casual
			   clothes!

Talk Boost

What is the most difficult
subject for you?41

 interestingは in  ter  est  ing，deliciousはde  li  cious （この ciはmusicianや specialの ci同様 shと同じ
発音なので，ci［シュ］ + ous［アス］= cious［シャス］），dangerousはdan  ger  ous （このdaはdateのdaと
同様「デイ」と発音）と分けて考えましょう。語尾が -ing，-ed，-ous，-ive，-ent，-ant，-al，-able，-ibleなどで
ある形容詞には，more/mostがつきます。

 2問（英語のみ）を40秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : What is the most difficult subject for you?
B : Science is the most difficult subject for me.
  I can’t memorize and calculate well
  when I study science.

 interesting subject
 for you

1

 delicious food
 of the school lunch menu

3

 fashionable teacher
 in this school

5

 important thing
 for you

2

 popular song
 in this class

4

 dangerous place
 in this school

6

elicious food  popul
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2	 A	:	 Which do you like better,
			   dogs or cats?
	 B	:	 I like dogs better than cats.
			   I believe I can communicate with
			   dogs.

4	 A	:	 Which do you like better,
			   comic books or novels?
	 B	:	 I like novels better than comic
			   books.  I’m interested in the words 
			   and expressions in novels.

6	 A	:	 Which do you like better,
			   school uniforms or casual clothes?
	 B	:	 I like casual clothes better than
			   school uniforms.  I hope I can go to
			   school in my casual clothes.

1	 A	:	 Which do you like better,
			   summer or winter?
	 B	:	 I like summer better than winter.
			   My dream is to live on one of the
			   southern islands.

3	 A	:	 Which do you like better,
			   the city or the countryside?
	 B	:	 I like the countryside better than
			   the city because I can see the wide
			   open sky and lots of stars.

5	 A	:	 Which do you like better,
			   school lunch or boxed lunch?
	 B	:	 I like school lunch better than
			   boxed lunch.  I can eat the same
			   things as my friends in school 
			   lunches.

Talk Boost

Which do you like better,
baseball or soccer?42

 それぞれの問題で，自分がより好きなほうを選ぶだけでなく，もう一方が好きだと仮定して理由づけをするとディベー
トの練習になりますし，両者のよいところや利点を考えることで論理的な思考力が高まります。授業では，ペアになっ
てじゃんけんで勝った人が好きなほうを選び，負けた人は残ったほうを支持します。最後は先生やALTと勝負！

 2問（英語のみ）を60秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Which do you like better, baseball or soccer?
B : I like baseball better than soccer.
  But I like basketball the best
  of all sports.

 summer
 winter

 the city
 the countryside 

 school lunch
 boxed lunch

 dogs
 cats

 comic books
 novels

 school uniforms
 casual clothes
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 the city

 school lunch

ogs

 comic books

 school uniforms
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2	 A	:	 Nancy’s bike is as big as Tom’s.
	 B	:	 I don’t think so.  Nancy’s bike isn’t
			   as big as Tom’s.
	 A	:	 You mean Nancy’s bike is smaller
			   than Tom’s?
	 B	:	 Yes, that’s right.

4	 A	:	 Peter speaks as fast as Maggy.
	 B	:	 I don’t think so.  Peter doesn’t
			   speak as fast as Maggy.
	 A	:	 You mean Peter speaks more slowly
			   than Maggy?
	 B	:	 Yes, that’s right.

6	 A	:	 You eat as much as your brother.
	 B	:	 I don’t think so.  I don’t eat as
			   much as my brother.
	 A	:	 You mean you eat less than your
			   brother?
	 B	:	 Yes, that’s right.

1	 A	:	 The Tower of the Sun is as tall as 
			   Tsutenkaku.
	 B	:	 I don’t think so.  The Tower of the
			   Sun isn’t as tall as Tsutenkaku.
	 A	:	 You mean The Tower of the Sun is 
			   shorter than Tsutenkaku?
	 B	:	 Yes, that’s right.

3	 A	:	 James gets up as early as
			   my grandfather.
	 B	:	 I don’t think so.  James doesn’t
			   get up as early as your grandfather.
	 A	:	 You mean James gets up later than
			   my grandfather?
	 B	:	 Yes, that’s right.

5	 A	:	 Jane’s Japanese is as good as
			   her mother’s.
	 B	:	 I don’t think so.  Jane’s Japanese
			   isn’t as good as her mother’s.
	 A	:	 You mean Jane’s Japanese is worse
			   than her mother’s?
	 B	:	 Yes, that’s right.

Talk Boost

Science is as difficult as math.43

 asは「同じほど，同じくらい」という意味で，Science is as difficult as math.は「理科は / = /同じくらい難しい /
数学と同じくらい」という構造です。Science isn’t as difficult as math.は「理科は / =ではない /同じくらい難し
い /数学と同じくらい」→「理科は数学ほど難しくはない」→「Science is easier than math.（理科は数学より簡単
だ）」となります。

 2問（英語・日本語）を60秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Science is as difficult as math.
B : I don’t think so.
  Science isn’t as difficult as math.
A : You mean science is easier than math?
B : Yes, that’s right.

 The Tower of the Sun
 is
 tall
 Tsutenkaku
 short

1

 James
 gets up
 early
 my grandfather
 late

3

 Jane’s Japanese
 is
 good
 her mother’s
 bad

5

 Nancy’s bike
 is
 big
 Tom’s
 small

2

 Peter
 speaks
 fast
 Maggy
 slowly

4

 you
 eat
 much
 your brother 
 little
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The Tower of the Sun

ndfdfd ather
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50



2	 A	:	 Is Matcha chocolate sold abroad?
	 B	:	 No, it isn’t.  It is a Japanese
			   specialty.

4	 A	:	 Are pocket tissues given away
			   on the streets in New York?
	 B	:	 No, they aren’t.  Paper is more
			   expensive abroad than in Japan.

6	 A	:	 Are food models displayed at
			   overseas restaurants?
	 B	:	 No, they aren’t.  So they are very
			   popular as souvenirs among foreign
			   tourists.

1	 A	:	 Is pork eaten all over the world?
	 B	:	 No, it isn’t.  In some areas, eating
			   pork is banned.

3	 A	:	 Are door plates with a family
			   name seen in foreign countries?
	 B	:	 Yes, they are.  You can see them in
			   Thailand, Korea, and other 
			   countries.

5	 A	:	 Are electronic toilets installed in
			   each hotel room in Europe?
	 B	:	 No, they aren’t.  They can rarely be
			   seen in foreign countries.

Talk Boost

Is English spoken in China?44

 1 ～ 6 は日本ではふつうに見られるものですが，海外ではそうとは限りません。答えを予想して，さらに数文加えて
いきましょう。spoken in，eaten all，seen in，given away，in each，in Europeの下線部は音がつながりま
す。たとえば spoken inは「スポウクニン」と発音します。can youは「キャンユー」ではなく「キャニュー」なんです
ね。

 2問（英語のみ）を60秒以内に言えたら合格です。

A : Is English spoken in China?
B : No, it isn’t.
  It is studied, but it is not usually used
  in their daily life.

 pork
 eat
 all over the world

 door plates with a family name
 see
 in foreign countries

 electronic toilets
 install
 in each hotel room in Europe

 Matcha chocolate
 sell
 abroad

 pocket tissues
 give away
 on the streets in New York

 food models
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2	 A	:	 Where were your shoes made?
	 B	:	 They were made in China.  All of
			   my other shoes were made in
			   China.

4	 A	:	 Where is Tokyo Disneyland located?
	 B	:	 Although its name says “Tokyo,”
			   it is actually located in Chiba.
			   Disneyland Paris is also not in Paris.

6	 A	:	 What kinds of goods are sold
			   at a drugstore?
	 B	:	 So many kinds of things are sold
			   other than medicines, such as
			   cosmetics, shampoos, detergents,
			   prepared foods, meats, vegetables,
			   fruits, drinks, snacks, magazines,
			   and so on.

1	 A	:	 What time are you woken up
			   every day?
	 B	:	 I’m woken up at six thirty every
			   day.  My sister wakes me up.
			   She is very scary.

3	 A	:	 When were you last scolded
			   at home?
	 B	:	 I was scolded this morning because
			   I didn’t eat breakfast when my
			   mom prepared it for me.

5	 A	:	 What kinds of things are put
			   on your desk?
	 B	:	 A desk lamp, textbooks,
			   a smartphone charger, stationery,
			   AirPods, and games are put on my
			   desk.  It’s very messy.

Talk Boost

45 When was the Statue of
Liberty presented?

 頭に浮かんだ内容を英語にするときは，まずそれを英語の語順に直します。例えば，「私はたまに日曜日に部屋の模
様替えをします」ならば，「私は /たまに /模様替えをする /自分の部屋を /日曜日に」とします。それから英語に直す
のです。この例文では「たまに」と「模様替えをする」という表現がわかれば，何とか英文にできそうですね。

 2問（英語のみ）を60秒以内に言えたら合格です。

 上のモデル文を参考にして，1～6 の質問やクイズに英語で答えよう。
 できれば，　　部のように情報や感想を付け加えよう。

A : When was the Statue of Liberty presented?
B : It was presented in 1886.
  It’s in New York.
  You take a boat to get there.

 What time are you
 woken up every day?

1

 When were you last
 scolded at home?

3

 What kinds of things
 are put on your desk?

5

 Where were your shoes
 made?

2

 Where is Tokyo
 Disneyland located?

4

 What kinds of goods are
 sold at a drugstore?

6

 When were you l

 Where were your shoes

t kinds of goods are

tue of Liberty presentetue of Liberty presented?
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